
AGENDA

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015)

Wednesday, 27 July 2016

Dear Councillor

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting LICENSING AND APPEALS HEARINGS PANEL

Date Thursday, 4 August 2016

Time 10.30 am

Venue Main Committee Room, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton

Yours sincerely

J. Ives.
Dr Justin Ives
Chief Executive

To: Councillors Councillors
Mrs I Sanderson (Chairman)
P Bardon

S Watson

Other Members of the Council for information 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

Page No

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE, ODANA CAFE AND 
TAKEAWAY, NORTHALLERTON 

3 - 68

Report of the Executive Director

3. MATTERS OF URGENCY 

Any other business of which not less than 24 hours’ prior notice, preferably in 
writing, has been given to the Chief Executive and which the Chairman decides 
is urgent.



-  

 

 
 

LICENSING  ACT  2003  
 
 

LICENSING AND APPEALS HEARINGS PANEL 
 

 
PROCEDURE  

 
 

1. The hearing of matters will be less formal than hearings before, for instance, a 
Magistrates’ Court.  In particular, strict rules of evidence are not adhered to and 
information is not provided under oath.  Nevertheless, proceedings before the 
Panel will observe basic rules of natural justice. 

 
 
2. At the beginning of the hearing the Chairman shall:- 
 

 ask those present to introduce themselves; 
 

 explain the procedure; 
 

 ask the parties whether they consider the public should be excluded from all 
or part of the hearing; 

 
 ask the parties whether they wish permission for another person to appear 

at the hearing.   
 
 
3. The Panel will consider whether the public should be excluded from all or any 

part of the hearing.  This will only be done if the Panel considers that the public 
interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in 
public. 

 
 
4. The Panel will consider requests for permission for other persons to appear at 

the hearing.  Such permission will not be unreasonably withheld.   
 
 
5. The Chairman will ask the Environmental Health Manager to outline the 

background to the case.  The Environmental Health Manager’s role will be to 
provide factual information to the Panel. 

 
 
6. The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Panel (through the 

Chairman) and cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the Panel 
considers that cross-examination is required for it to consider the matter. 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



-  

 
 
7. The Chairman is likely to ask for the views of the parties in the following order:- 
 

(a) the applicant/licence holder/Notice giver (including any other persons who 
have been given permission to participate); 

 
(b) any party making representations (including any other persons who have 

been given permission to participate). 
 
 

8. The applicant/licence holder/Notice giver will be given the final opportunity to 
address the Panel. 

 
 

9. Each party will be given an equal maximum period of time in which to put 
forward any additional information requested by the Council, to question other 
persons (if given permission by the Panel) and address the Panel. 

 
 

10. The Panel may exclude disruptive persons in certain circumstances. 
 
 
11. The Panel may adjourn the hearing in certain circumstances. 
 
 
12. The Panel may ask the parties to withdraw so that it can consider its 

determination.  In considering its determination, the Panel may ask its Legal 
Advisor to provide it with legal and procedural advice.  The nature of this advice 
will be notified to the parties. 

 
 
13. The Panel will make its determination at the end of the hearing and this will be 

confirmed in writing. 
 
 
January 2005 
Revised April 2007 
Revised March 2012 
Revised May 2014 

Page 2



HAMBLETON  DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report To: Licensing and Appeals Hearings Panel
4 August 2016 

From: Executive Director  

Subject: APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE  
 ODANA CAFÉ AND TAKEAWAY, 6 FRIARAGE STREET, NORTHALLERTON 

Northallerton South Ward 

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1  This report asks the Panel to consider an application for the grant of a premises licence in 
 respect of Odana Café and Takeaway, 6 Friarage Street, Northallerton, DL6 1DP. 

2.0 PROCEDURE

2.1 The procedure for licensing hearings is attached as an Annex to the Agenda. 

3.0 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

3.1 The application for the grant of a premises licence was initially received by the Licensing 
Team on 11th April 2016. However, the application was not duly made in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 until 14th June 2016. 

3.2 The application is attached at Annex A along with the premises plan. A location plan of the 
premises is attached at Annex B. 

3.3 In addition to the statutory responsible authorities, the application was forwarded to 
Northallerton Town Council and the District Councillors for the Northallerton South Ward. 

3.4 Statutory advertisements were also placed in the local newspaper and on the premises to 
which the application relates. 

3.5 In summary, the application seeks to authorise the provision of late night refreshment 
between the hours of 11pm and 2am every day. 

4.0 PROMOTION OF LICENSING OBJECTIVES

4.1 The four licensing objectives set out in the Licensing Act 2003 are:- 

4.1.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
4.1.2 public safety; 
4.1.3 the prevention of public nuisance; 
4.1.4 the protection of children from harm. 

4.2 The Panel must carry out its functions with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



5.0 REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Relevant representations have been made by the following responsible authorities and 
other persons: 

� North Yorkshire Police (representation attached at Annex C); 
� Hambleton District Council’s Environmental Health Team (representation attached 
 at Annex D); and 
� Strutt and Parker on behalf of the Buenaventura Estate (representation attached  at 
 Annex E). 

5.2 The representations focus on concerns over child protection, public order, anti-social 
behaviour, noise nuisance and littering. 

5.3 Representations may be amplified at the hearing but any additional representations which 
do not amount to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the 
hearing. 

6.0 SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

6.1 On 18th July 2016, North Yorkshire Police submitted some further information for the 
Panel’s consideration. The information includes a witness statement and it relates to an 
allegation made against the manager of the premises concerning the unlawful supply of 
tobacco products to a person under the age of 18 years. The supporting information is 
attached at Annex F. 

6.2 On 26th July 2016, North Yorkshire Police submitted two further witness statements for the 
Panel’s consideration. The statements relate to a test purchase exercise carried out on 23rd

July 2016 in which unauthorised licensable activities were allegedly carried out contrary to 
the Licensing Act 2003. The statements are attached at Annex G. 

7.0 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 In carrying out its licensing functions the Panel is required to have regard to:- 

7.1.1 its Licensing Statement; 
7.1.2 any guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 

7.2 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy is attached at Annex H. 

7.3 Attached at Annex I are relevant extracts from the Home Office Guidance issued in March 
2015 under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. Pages 55-62 relate specifically to 
‘Determining Applications’. 

7.4 Licensing authorities have a general responsibility to avoid imposing unnecessary 
regulatory burdens on businesses and the Panel should consider the costs that can arise 
as a result of restrictions or conditions being imposed on premises licences. The only 
conditions that may be imposed are those which are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 

7.5 The Panel should note that hot food and hot drink can be provided before 11pm without a 
licence. Any decision must therefore be based on the likely effect of the licensable activities 
(the provision of hot food and hot drink between the hours of 11pm and 2am) on the 
promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. 

Page 4



8.0 DETERMINATION BY THE PANEL

8.1 The Panel must, having had regard to the representations, take such of the steps 
mentioned in 8.2 as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

8.2  The steps are:- 

8.2.1 to grant the licence as applied for (subject to any conditions consistent with the 
applicant’s operating schedule); 

8.2.2 to grant the licence subject to any modified conditions that Members consider 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

8.2.3 to reject the whole or part of the application. 

MICK JEWITT   

Background papers:  Procedure for Licensing Hearings 

Author ref:   SF 

Contact:   Simon Fisher 
Principal Licensing Officer 
Direct Line No: (01609) 767209 

Odana Report.docx

Page 5



Annex A

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Appendix B

Page 25



Appendix C

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



RL.F.1

Licensing Act 2003 
Environmental Health - Representation Response

Premises             
Address            

Date application received                     Date Returned to Local Authority    

Environmental Health Service Response.   

The Environmental Health would object to the application in its current form for the following reasons:- 

Odana Café and Takeaway. 

6 Friarage Street, Northallerton, North Yorkshire, DL6 1DP 

7th July 2016

Appendix D

Page 35



RL.F.1

Prevention of Crime & Disorder  

Prevention of Nuisances  

The Odana café and takeaway is in close proximity to local residential properties. Three separate 
flats are positioned to the first floor along the run of shops. Some bedrooms to these flats are front 
facing overlooking Friarage Street.  The application is to extend trading hours from 11.00 until 02.00 
Monday to Sunday.

This will have a negative impact on these residential properties from noise and activities that come 
with an extension of hours and becoming a late night venue. After 11pm patrons to the café and 
takeaway are more likely to come from the surrounding licensed venues. Associated noise from 
raised voices, shouting to or waiting for friends, singing etc  to the area surrounding the café / 
takeaway will impact on the bedrooms of these flats during times when occupants will be asleep. 

The front of the café has a standard width pavement which then goes onto Friarage street.  As seen 
in similar situations people may stray onto the road with the added implications of cars / taxis 
sounding horns to prevent impact – again a noise which would impact on the flats.  

The café and takeaway also advertise a delivery service. This will have added noise from the works 
vehicle pulling up outside the venue frequently throughout the proposed hours for the collection and 
delivery of pizzas.  

Protection of Children 

Public Safety  

These objections *cannot be overcome/*can be overcome by amendments to the Operating Schedule as 
follows:- 

Page 36



RL.F.1

Prevention of Crime & Disorder  

Prevention of Nuisances  

The proposed hours of use within this location are unworkable. I would suggest 11.30pm maximum trading 
time with additional time for closing down.  

Protection of Children 

Public Safety  

If these amendments are agreed / approved by the Applicants, the Environmental Health consider there will 
not be a need for a hearing of the Council’s Licensing Committee.  

These amendments have been discussed with the applicant and agreed to   

Yes   No

Inspecting Officer  ………Joy Swithenbank……… Date ……7th July 2016………………………………………. 

Joy Swithenbank  
Residential Team Lead Officer 
Tel 01609 767088 
Joy.Swithenbank@hambleton.gov.uk

Page 37



LFla.25 

Representations On A Current Application For A Grant/Variation of a 
Premises Licence Or Club Premises Certificate Under The Licensing Act 2003 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure 
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I/We (Insert name)

Wish to make representation about the application in respect of the premises licence or club 
premises certificate, the details for which are shown below. 

PART 1 – PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS 

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

Odana Pizza, 6 Friarage Street, DL6 1DP 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known) 

PART 2 – DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION  

I am: 

A person         (please complete section A below) 
A body representing any other person     (please complete section B below) 
A responsible authority       (please complete section C below) 
A member of the club to which this representation relates   (please complete section A below) 

Fran Barrigan of Strutt & Parker 

Appendix E

Page 38



LFla.25 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable) 

I am 18 years old or over             Yes       (Please Tick) 

Name and Address 

Daytime contact telephone 

number

E-mail address (optional)  

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address  Fran Barrigan of Strutt & Parker, Thornfield Business Park, Standard Way, 

Northallerton, DL6 2XQ 

On behalf of the Buenaventura Estate 

Telephone Number (If any) 01609 780306 

E-Mail address (optional) 

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION 

Name and Address 

Telephone Number (If any) 

E-Mail address (optional) 

This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

the prevention of crime and disorder  
public safety     
the prevention of public nuisance  
the protection of children from harm  

Please state the ground(s) for representation.  (please read guidance note 1) 

Objection is on the grounds of the existing public nuisance and crime associated with the locality 

and the likely extension of these problems relating to later opening hours. 

Page 39



LFla.25 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation 

(please read guidance note 2) 

My clients own properties 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b, 3-4 and 5 Friarage Street and 1, 2 and 3 East Road.  The 

majority of these premises are commercial, but there are residential flats above 3-4 Friarage 

Street, 1 East Road and 2 East Road. 

We have serious concerns about the advisability of extending opening hours to 2am in a location 

where residential properties are already suffering from antisocial behaviour problems. 

Tenants of my client’s premises have suffered from intimidation, littering and antisocial behaviour 

in the area around the 6 Friarage Street and the alleyway behind.  This has included noise 

nuisance and illegal drug use/alcohol. 

I cannot provide full details of the complaints in a document of public record (due to the need to 

protect the identity and safety of those who have made us aware of problems) however the police 

have a full record of the problems including documentary evidence and will be able to advise as to 

the difficulties faced.  

Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? Yes / No  

   Day Month Year 

If Yes, please state the date of that 
representation

        

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and 
when you made them. 

Page 40



LFla.25 

Part 3 – Signatures   (Please read guidance note 3)  

Signature of representative(s), solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 4)  
If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity. 

Signature Redacted by Licensing Team Date 15/06/16 

Capacity
Agent

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
representation.  (Please read guidance note 5) 

As above 

Post Town Post Code 

Telephone Number (if any) 

E-mail Address (optional) 

Notes for Guidance 

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details (e.g. dates of problems which are included 

in the grounds for representation if applicable). 
3. The representation form must be signed. 
4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address, which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation. 
6. Information on the Licensing Act 2003 is available at www.hambleton.gov.uk and you are 

advised to read any relevant guidance leaflets before completing this form. 

Please return this form by post to:  

The Licensing Team, Hambleton District Council, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton 
DL6 2UU 

Or by email to: 

licensingteam@hambleton.gov.uk

Page 41



Appendix F

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Appendix G

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



LGla1 

STATEMENT OF
LICENSING POLICY 

Version Control 

Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Hambleton District Council 18th December 2007 
1.1 Hambleton District Council 21st December 2010 
1.2 Licensing & Environmental Protection Committee 26th June 2012 
   

Appendix H

Page 49



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 2 of 11 

Index to the Statement of Licensing Policy 

        Page 
1.0 General            3  

2.0 Fundamental Principles         4 

3.0 Preventing Crime and Disorder        5 

4.0 Fire safety           5 

5.0 Other public safety matters      6 

6.0 Preventing Public Nuisance          6 

7.0 Children           6  

8.0 Cumulative Impact       7 

9.0 Licensing Hours           8 

10.0 Integrating Strategies            9 

11.0 Duplication             9 

12.0  Standardised conditions      9 

13.0 Live Music, Dancing and Theatre  10 

14.0 Promotion of racial equality   10 

15.0 Enforcement     10 

16.0 Administration, exercise and delegation of  
functions      10 

Page 50



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 3 of 11 

REVISED STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY – LICENSING ACT 2003 

1.0 GENERAL 

1.1 Licensing under the Licensing Act 2003 is about the control of licensed 
premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events within the terms of the 
Licensing Act 2003. Activities which require a licence under the Licensing Act 
2003 and covered by this policy include:- 

�� ��� retail sale of alcohol; 
��� supply of alcohol to club members; 
��� provision of entertainment to the public or club members or with a view 

to making profit, including raising money for charity where the 
entertainment involves:- 
- a theatrical performance; 
- film exhibition; 
- indoor sporting event; 
- a boxing or wrestling entertainment; 
- live music performance; 
- playing of recorded music; 
- dance performance; 
- provision of facilities for making music; 
- provision of dancing facilities; 
- supply of hot food or drink from a premises from 23.00 to 05.00 hours. 

1.2  Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended requires a Licensing 
Authority to prepare and publish a Statement of its Licensing Policy at least
every five years. Such a policy must be published before the Authority carries 
out any function in respect of individual applications made under the terms of 
the 2003 Act. 

1.3  Before determining its policy for any five year period the Licensing Authority 
must consult the persons listed in Section 5(3) of the 2003 Act. These are:- 
(a)  the Chief Officer of Police for the area; 
(b) the Fire and Rescue Authority;
(c)  persons/bodies representative of local holders of Premises Licences; 
(d)  persons/bodies representative of local holders of Club Premises 

Certificates;
(e) persons/bodies representative of local holders of Personal Licences; 
(f)  persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area. 

1.4  The views of all these bodies listed will be given proper weight when the policy 
is determined. In addition, the Council may consult other individuals or bodies 
with a stake in the licensing of premises covered by the 2003 Act. 

1.5 This policy will cover all applications for Premises and Personal Licences and 
notification of temporary events, together with applications for renewals, 
transfer and variations of conditions. 

Page 51



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 4 of 11 

2.0  FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES 

2.1  In carrying out its licensing functions the Authority will promote the licensing 
objectives which are:- 
�� the prevention of crime and disorder; 
��� public safety; 
��� the prevention of public nuisance; and 
��� the protection of children from harm. 

2.2  An individual may apply under the terms of the Act for a variety of permissions 
and any such application will be considered on its individual merits. Any 
person may make representations on an application or seek a review of a 
licence or certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the 
Act.

2.3  Licensing is about the control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and 
temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act and the terms and 
conditions attached to various permissions will be focused on matters which 
are within the control of individual licensees and others granted relevant 
permissions. Accordingly, these matters will centre on the premises and 
places being used for licensable activities and the vicinity of those premises 
and places. Whether or not incidents can be regarded as being “in the vicinity” 
of licensed premises or places is ultimately a matter of fact to be decided by 
the courts in cases of dispute. In addressing applications, the Licensing 
Authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place 
at the licensed premises on members of public living, working or engaged in 
normal activity in the area concerned. Licensing law is not a mechanism for 
the general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are 
beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business holding the 
licence, certificate or permission concerned. 

2.4  The Council will seek to use other mechanisms that are available for 
addressing problems caused by a minority of consumers behaving badly and 
unlawfully once away from licensed premises. For example:- 
�������planning controls; 
��� positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 

partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
departments of the Council and other Local Authorities; 

�������powers of Local Authorities to designate parts of the Local Authority area 
as places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly; 

��� Police enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices. 

��� the prosecution of any Personal Licence holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk; 

�� the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas; 
��� Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed 

premises or temporary events on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of 
disorder or excessive noise emanating from the premises; 

Page 52



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 5 of 11 

�� the power of the Police, other responsible authority or a local resident or 
business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question. 

2.5 Requirements for advertising applications for the grant, variation or review of 
premises licences or club premises certificates are set out in legislation. This 
includes the applicant’s statutory requirements of publishing a notice in a local 
newspaper and displaying a brief summary of the application on or outside the 
premises concerned. In addition, the Licensing Authority will place a notice on 
the Council’s website outlining details of the application as set out in 
legislation. The summary will set out matters such as the proposed licensable 
activities and the proposed hours of opening and will be displayed for the 
period during which representations may be made, together with information 
about where the details of the application may be viewed. 

3.0  PREVENTING CRIME AND DISORDER 

3.1  The Council will ensure that adequate measures are taken by licensees to 
reduce the risk of crime and disorder. The appropriate measures will depend 
on the type, size and location of premises and the activities to be carried out. 
However, the following are examples of issues that will be considered:- 
��� effective methods of communication between licensees and the Police 

(e.g., radio, paper, ringround, ringmaster); 
��� membership of a Pubwatch or similar scheme and active participation in 

that scheme: 
�� �use of CCTV systems where appropriate; 
��� appropriate policies and practices relating to avoidance of underage 

drinking (e.g., use of ID schemes, referral logs, signage, etc); 
��� appropriate drugs policies and practices; 
�� �glass and bottle policies and practices (e.g., introducing toughened 

drinking glasses, prohibiting the taking of glasses from the premises); 
��� effective control of the premises and record keeping (e.g., trained and 

registered door staff if appropriate, incident logs, training of staff); 
��� transport liaison arrangements (e.g., readily available information on 

access to taxis, public transport, etc). 

4.0  FIRE SAFETY: 

4.1  The Fire Authority has regulatory powers under the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005 to enforce and control fire safety matters in licensed 
premises. The Council will not seek to duplicate these powers. 

4.2  However, preventing the crime of arson relates to the Licensing Objectives. 
Consequently the Council will seek to ensure that adequate measures are 
taken by licensees to reduce the risk and opportunity for deliberate fire setting. 
This might be to ensure that the security arrangements of the premises reduce 
the risk that a fire might be started deliberately by actively controlling access 
to non-public and external areas. It may also include measures to ensure that 
the accumulation of and access to waste materials is controlled. 

Page 53



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 6 of 11 

5.0  OTHER PUBLIC SAFETY MATTERS: 

5.1  The Council will ensure that adequate measures are taken by licensees to 
reduce the risk to public safety. This may include provisions for restrictions on 
the number of persons who can attend a premises or part of a premises or a 
specific entertainment at any one time. It might also include a requirement to 
carry out or have evidence of certain safety inspections such as those relating 
to electrical or gas appliances or structural matters. 

6.0  PREVENTING PUBLIC NUISANCE: 

6.1  The Council will ensure that adequate measures are taken by licensees to 
reduce the risk of public nuisance. In particular, it will look at measures to limit 
noise nuisance, both from the premises and from customers entering and 
leaving the premises. Methods of control might include restrictions on hours, 
particularly late at night, noise limiters on musical equipment and sound 
insulation of buildings, plant and equipment. 

6.2  The Council will also expect licensees to adopt measures to avoid problems 
caused by customers spilling out of premises because they have reached 
capacity or for other reasons. 

6.3 The Council will ensure that adequate measures are taken to deal with litter 
problems created by a licensable use in the immediate vicinity of the 
premises.

7.0  CHILDREN: 

7.1  Subject to the licensee’s discretion and any conditions included in a Premises 
Licence or Club Premises Certificate, the 2003 Act does not prohibit children 
having free access to licensed premises of all kinds, including those selling 
alcohol for consumption on those premises. The Council recognises the great 
variety of premises for which licences may be sought. These include theatres, 
cinemas, restaurants, concert halls, cafés, take-aways and fast food outlets as 
well as public houses and nightclubs. 

7.2  The Council will not limit the access of children to such premises unless it is 
necessary for the prevention of harm to children. General rules on access of 
children will be avoided. The individual merits of each application will be 
considered.

7.3  The Council will in particular take account of the following situations in respect 
of premises:- 
��� where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or with a 

reputation for underage drinking; 
��� with a known association with drug taking or dealing; 
��� where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises; 
��� where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided; 
��� where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the 

exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises. 

Page 54



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 7 of 11 

7.4  There are a number of options available for limiting the access of children 
where that is necessary for the prevention of harm to children. The options 
include:-
��� limitations on the parts of premises to which children can have access; 
�� limitations on the hours when children may be present; 
�� age limitations (below 18); 
�� limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 
��� requirements for accompanying adult; 
��� full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable 

activities are taking place. 

7.5  The Council will not impose conditions requiring the admission of children to 
any premises. Where no licensing restriction is necessary, this should remain 
a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club. 

7.6  In the case of premises giving film exhibitions, the Licensing Authority expects 
licensees to impose conditions that children will be restricted from viewing 
age-restricted films classified according to the recommendations of the British 
Board of Film Classification or the Local Authority itself. The Council does not 
intend to adopt its own system of classification. 

7.7  There should be at least one member of adult staff at places of public 
entertainment to control the access and egress of children and to assure their 
safety.

7.8  The Council commends to all licensees in sale and supply of alcohol the 
Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of 
Alcoholic Drinks. 

7.9  The Council recognises the North Yorkshire Area Child Protection Committee 
as the “responsible authority” in respect of children’s issues. This will therefore 
be the body to which copies of applications are sent. 

8.0  CUMULATIVE IMPACT: 

8.1  It is possible that the impact on surrounding areas of the behaviour of 
customers taken together is greater in these cases than the usual impact from 
customers of individual premises. In these circumstances the Council may 
receive representations from a responsible authority or others that the 
cumulative effect of new licences is leading to an area becoming saturated 
with premises, making it a focal point for large groups of people to gather and 
circulate away from the licensed premises themselves. This might be creating 
exceptional problems of disorder and nuisance over and above the impact 
from the individual premises. This might lead the Council in turn to consider 
the question of whether the grant of any further Premises Licences or Club 
Premises Certificate would undermine one of the licensing objectives. In these 
circumstances the cumulative impact will be addressed in the context of the 
individual merits of any application. 

Page 55



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 8 of 11 

8.2  The Council will not impose quotas that restrict the consideration of any 
application on its individual merits or which seek to impose limitations on 
trading hours in particular areas. Nor does the Council feel it is appropriate to 
adopt a special policy of refusing new licences because any part of its area is 
already saturated with licensed premises. 

8.3  The Council has duties to comply with its obligations under Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 in respect of crime and disorder and to the 
licensing objectives in the 2003 Act. The Council will consider representations 
based on the impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives in the 
Licensing Authority’s area generally of the grant of the particular application 
before them. However, the onus will be on the objector to lay an evidentiary 
base for the assertion that the addition of the premises in question would 
produce the cumulative impact claimed. The impact can be expected to be 
different for premises with different styles and characteristics. 

9.0  LICENSING HOURS: 

9.1  When dealing with licensing hours, each application will be dealt with on its 
individual merits. Longer licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol are 
important to ensure that the concentrations of customers leaving premises 
simultaneously are avoided. This is necessary to reduce the friction at late 
night fast food outlets, taxi ranks and other sources of transport which lead to 
disorder and disturbance. 

9.2  The Council will not set fixed trading hours within designated areas. Stricter 
conditions with regard to noise control may be demanded in areas which have 
denser residential accommodation, but this will not limit opening hours without 
regard to the individual merits of any application. 

9.3  Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be free to provide sales of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is 
open for shopping unless there are very good reasons for restricting those 
hours. For example, a limitation may be appropriate following Police 
representations in the case of isolated shops known to be a focus of disorder 
and disturbance because youths gather there. 

10.0  INTEGRATING STRATEGIES: 

10.1  The Council will secure the proper integration of its licensing function with 
local crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism and cultural strategies. 

10.2  Conditions attached to Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates will, 
if appropriate, reflect local crime prevention strategies. For example, the 
provision of closed circuit television cameras in certain premises. 

10.3  Protocols agreed between the local Police and other Licensing Enforcement 
Officers will provide for them to report to the Local Authority Transport 
Committees and other relevant bodies so that those bodies may have regard 

Page 56



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 9 of 11 

to the need to disperse people from town centres swiftly and safely to avoid 
concentrations which produce disorder and disturbance. 

10.4  The Licensing and Environmental Protection Committee (the Committee) will 
receive, where appropriate, reports on the needs of the local tourist economy 
and the cultural strategy for the area to ensure that these are reflected in their 
considerations. The Committee will in particular monitor the impact of licensing 
on the provision of regulated entertainment, and particularly live music and 
dancing.

10.5  The Committee will keep abreast of the employment situation in the area and 
the need for new investment and employment where appropriate. 

10.6  The Council will ensure that there is a proper separation of the planning and 
licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Licensing applications 
will not be a re-run of the planning application and will not cut across decisions 
taken by the Planning Committee or following appeals against decisions taken 
by that Committee. The Licensing and Environmental Protection Committee 
will, where appropriate, provide regular reports to the Planning Committee or 
Cabinet as appropriate on the situation regarding licensed premises in the 
area, including the general impact of alcohol related crime and disorder. This 
will enable the Planning Committee or the Cabinet to have regard to such 
matters when taking their decisions and avoid any unnecessary overlap. 

11.0  DUPLICATION: 

11.1  The Council will avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as 
possible. For example, legislation governing health and safety at work and fire 
safety will place a range of general duties on employers and operators of 
venues, both in respect of employees and of the general public when on the 
premises in question. Conditions will only be attached to Premises Licences 
and Club Premises Certificates that are “necessary” for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives and if already provided for in other legislation, they cannot 
be considered necessary in the context of licensing law. Such regulations will 
not, however, always cover the unique circumstances that arise in connection 
with entertainment. Indeed, certain safety legislation includes exemption 
because it is assumed that licensing controls will provide the necessary 
coverage.

12.0  STANDARDISED CONDITIONS: 

12.1 A key concept underscoring the 2003 Act is for conditions to be attached to 
licences and certificates, which are tailored to the individual style and 
characteristics of the premises and events concerned. This is essential to 
avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on 
premises where there is no need for such conditions. Standardised conditions 
will therefore be avoided and conditions will only be attached where they can 
be shown to be necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives in any 
individual case. However, the pools of conditions from which appropriate and 

Page 57



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 10 of 11 

proportionate conditions may be drawn in particular circumstances are 
attached in the Annexes to this Policy. 

13.0  LIVE MUSIC, DANCING AND THEATRE: 

13.1 In considering applications, proper account will be taken of the need to 
encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural 
benefit of communities generally. The potential for limited disturbance in 
neighbourhoods will always be carefully balanced with these wider benefits, 
particularly for children. In determining what conditions should be attached to 
licences and certificates as a matter of necessity for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives, the Council will be aware of the need to avoid measures 
which deter live music, dancing and theatre by imposing indirect costs of a 
substantial nature. 

14.0  PROMOTION OF RACIAL EQUALITY: 

14.1  The Council recognises that the Equality Act 2010 places a general equality 
duty to have regard to the need to:- 

� Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimization and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act, 

� Advance equality of opportunity between people who do not share a 
relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it, 

� Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. 

 The Council will apply these principles in undertaking its licensing function. 

15.0  ENFORCEMENT: 

15.1  The Council will establish and maintain protocols with the local Police on 
enforcement issues. This should provide for a more efficient deployment of 
Local Authority staff and Police Officers who are commonly engaged in 
enforcing licensing law and the inspection of licensed premises. 

15.2  These protocols will in particular provide for the targeting of agreed problem 
and high risk premises which require greater attention, while providing a 
lighter touch in respect of low risk premises which are well run. The 2003 Act 
does not require inspections to take place, save at the discretion of those 
charged with this role. The principle of risk assessment and targeting will 
prevail and inspections will not be undertaken routinely but when and if they 
are judged necessary. 

16.0  ADMINISTRATION, EXERCISE AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS: 

16.1 The 2003 Act provides that decisions and functions may be taken or carried 
out by Licensing Committees or delegated Sub-Committees or, in appropriate 
cases, to officials supporting the Licensing Authority. The principle of 
delegation is supported in the interests of speed, efficiency and cost-
effectiveness.

Page 58



Y:\Committee Services\Licensing & Appeals Hearings Panel\Reports\2016\040816 10.30am\Annex H - Statement of Licensing 
Policy.doc  Page 11 of 11 

16.2 The Council will offer a minor variation process that allows applicants to apply 
for a variation of the licence that will have no adverse effect on the four 
licensing objectives through a streamlined process. 

16.3 Functions under the Licensing Act will be dealt with as shown below:- 

Matter to be Dealt with Licensing Hearings Panel Officers: 

Application for Personal 
Licence.

If an objection made. If no objection 
made.

Application for Personal 
Licence with unspent 
convictions.

All cases.

Application for Premises 
Licence/Club Premises 
Certificate.

If a relevant representation 
made.

If no relevant 
representation
made.

Application for provisional 
statement.

If a relevant representation 
made.

If no relevant 
representation
made.

Application to vary 
Premises Licence/Club 
Premises Certificate. 

If a relevant representation 
made.

If no relevant 
representation
made.

Application to vary designated 
Personal Licence holder. 

If an objection made. All other cases. 

Request to be removed as 
designated Personal Licence 
holder.

All cases. 

Application for transfer of 
Premises Licence 

If an objection made. All other cases. 

Applications for Interim 
Authorities.

If an objection made All other cases. 

Application to review 
Premises Licence/Club 
Premises Certificate. 

All cases.  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant, 
frivolous, vexatious, etc. 

 All cases. 

Decision to object when Local 
Authority is a consultee and not 
the lead Authority. 

All cases.  

Determination of a Police or 
Environmental Health Service 
representation to a Temporary 
Event Notice. 

All cases.  

Determination of a Minor 
Variation application 

 All cases 

Appendix – Pool of Conditions (April 2012) 
L.G.la1 

Page 59



Appendix I

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Procedure
	2 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence, Odana Cafe and Takeaway, Northallerton



